
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

CABINET MEMBER SIGNING 
 

Monday, 2nd September, 2024, 4.30 pm - Alexandra House, Station 
Road, N22 7TY (watch the live meeting here, watch the recording 
here) 
 
Councillors: Sarah Williams 

 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS   

 
Please note that this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for 
live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone 
attending the meeting using any communication method. Although we ask 
members of the public recording, filming or reporting on the meeting not to 
include the public seating areas, members of the public attending the meeting 
should be aware that we cannot guarantee that they will not be filmed or 
recorded by others attending the meeting. Members of the public participating 
in the meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, making oral 
protests) should be aware that they are likely to be filmed, recorded or 
reported on. By entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, 
you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images 
and sound recordings. 
 
The Chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or 
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or 
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any 
individual or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

3. URGENT BUSINESS   
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a 
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is 
considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
withdraw from the meeting room. 
 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YTZhYjlhZDUtMDg5NC00YjUzLTllZGEtY2ZjNDc2MWM2MDBi%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%226ddfa760-8cd5-44a8-8e48-d8ca487731c3%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2279ba4d97-104d-4051-b7e8-af46923b30a1%22%7d
https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PL_DSjoFpWl8tSPZp3XSVAEhv-gWr-6Vzd


 

A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which 
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a 
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 
days of the disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests 
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct 
 

5. HALE WHARF DEVELOPMENT  (PAGES 1 - 8) 
 

6. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
Item 5  is likely to be subject to a motion to exclude the press and public be 
from the meeting as it contains exempt information as defined in Section 100a 
of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended by Section 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1985); paras 3 and 5, namely information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority 
holding that information) and information in respect of which a claim to legal 
professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings. 
 

7. EXEMPT - HALE WHARF DEVELOPMENT  (PAGES 9 - 14) 
 
 

 
Ayshe Simsek, Democratic Services and Scrutiny Manager 
Tel – 020 8489 2929 
Fax – 020 8881 5218 
Email: ayshe.simsek@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Fiona Alderman 
Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
George Meehan House, 294 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8JZ 
 
Thursday, 22 August 2024 
 



 
 
 

Report for:  Cabinet Member for Housing 
 
Item number: To be added by the Committee Section 
 
Title: Hale Wharf Development (Extension of Agreed Limit for the 

acquisition of the long leasehold interests in 191 residential units 
contained within the S106 agreement for Hale Wharf Phase 2, 
Tottenham Hale) 

Report  
authorised by :  David Joyce, Director of Placemaking and Housing 
 
Lead Officer: Robbie Erbmann, Assistant Director for Housing. 
 
Ward(s) affected: Tottenham Hale 
 
Report for Key/  
Non Key Decision: Key Decision 
 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 
1.1 On 22 July 2021 and 9 November 2021, Cabinet gave authority to acquire 

homes across six blocks to be built at Hale Wharf that would deliver 191 new 
Council homes for the package price set of out in the Exempt part of this report. 
The Development Agreement for the acquisition was entered into on 29 
December 2021.  

 

1.2 It has been necessary to make a number of variations to the Development 
Agreement to make three of the six blocks compliant with recent changes in 
building regulations and safety legislation, including by converting one of the 
existing two passenger lifts to be full evacuation lifts for disabled residents. 
Furthermore, the addition of window jacklocs to all six blocks is required ensuring 
maximum safety for our residents. This report seeks retrospective authority to 
extend the purchase price to incorporate these changes.  

 

1.3 The report seeks authority to increase the Agreed Limit previously agreed by 
Cabinet as a result of   the installation of dedicated disabled evacuation lifts within 
the high rise buildings and other relevant health and safety and maintenance 
requirements for the six blocks.   

 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction 
         N/a 
 
3. Recommendations  

 

Page 1 Agenda Item 5



3.1 approve the additional sum to the agreed limit to the acquisition costs set out in 
the exempt part of this report.  
 

3.2 approve an increase to the Total Scheme Costs as set out in the exempt part 
of this report 

 
 

4 Reasons for decision  
 

4.1 Following recommendations from the London Fire Brigade for the scheme to 
include dedicated disabled evacuation lifts in the 3 high rise blocks, D, E and F, 
that the Council has acquired a change variation under the Development 
Agreement  was required. 

4.2 At the time the scheme was approved and the Development Agreement entered 
into, there was no regulatory obligation to incorporate dedicated disabled lifts. As 
new regulations and legislation emerged regarding fire safety and High Rise 
Buildings in 2023, to mitigate risks and facilitate safe access in the event of a fire 
for the 17 wheelchair homes, pepper potted throughout blocks D, E and F, it was 
considered that one of the two passenger lifts in each of these three blocks be 
converted to full evacuation lifts. Therefore, a change variation was instructed at 
the appropriate time in the programme to allow for the technical installation work 
to commence without delay.   

4.3 Similar health and safety principles apply to the installation of jacklocs across the 
scheme.  

4.4 The remaining change variations focus on changes to enable better 
management and maintenance across the scheme. 

4.5 Due to the above reasons, the Total Scheme Costs have increased and the 
overall purchase price of the acquisition has also increased. Please see the 
Exempt part of this report.  

 
5 Alternative options considered 

5.1 Not to install dedicated disabled evacuation lifts. This option was rejected 
because it would represent a missed opportunity for the Council to: 

5.2 Ensure compliance with new building legislation and regulations despite the 
scheme being approved under previous regulations and provides for greater 
resident safety in the event of a fire, or other event that might require evacuation. 
 

5.3 Provide an approach to building safety that goes beyond the Personal 
Emergency Evacuation Process (PEEP) approach.  

 
5.4 Any delays in the programme resulting from a late instruction could have resulted 

in additional costs and potentially significant extension of time costs or a missed 
opportunity to install evacuation lifts  

5.5 Not to install jacklocs- this option was rejected in consideration of recent 
incidences reported in the media regarding child fatalities by falling from a 
window at height in London.  

Page 2



5.6 Not to incorporate Caretakers facility and relevant management and 
maintenance changes would result in the council unable to manage the 6 blocks 
effectively.   

 
6 Background information 

 

6.1 Planning permission for the wider masterplan was secured on 12th June 2017.  
 

6.2  On 22 July 2021 and 9 November 2021, Cabinet gave authority to acquire 
homes across six blocks to be built at Hale Wharf that would deliver 191 new 
Council homes for a package price as set out in the Exempt Part, Appendix 2.  

The Hale Wharf development is being delivered by Waterside Places Limited 
Partnership (WPLP) which is a joint venture between the Canal and River Trust 
and private developers Muse.  

During the course of construction, changes to building legislation and 
regulations took place. A number of additional items were requested to be 
included in the development that was not originally included to ensure the new 
Council homes at Hale Wharf are fully compliant. Those changes are set out 
below.  

   

Change Variation – Dedicated disabled evacuation lifts 

6.3 Of the 191 homes acquired by the Council, 21 are wheelchair accessible, and 
all homes will meet standards for adaptability. The wheelchair homes are 
primarily in blocks D, E and F. Blocks D and E are 7 stories in height and under 
the new building regulations and legislation, would require a dedicated disabled 
evacuation lift.  

6.4 Comments received from the London Fire Brigade in 2023 suggested the need 
to provide safe escape for all building users, including those with disabilities 
and the installation of a dedicated evacuation lift for disabled persons. Whilst 
this was not a requirement to deliver under the previous regulations when the 
scheme was approved. This is now a requirement under the new Building 
Regulations and Building Safety Act and is a requirement for all future buildings 
over 7 stories in height or 18m in height. The affected buildings at Hale Wharf 
are as follows:- 

 Block D – Ground + 7 storeys (occupiable) – Ground to top occupied 

floor 22.50m (Building Height – 28.050m) 

 Block E – Ground + 7 storeys (occupiable) – Ground to top occupied 

floor 22.50m (Building Height – 28.050m) 

 Block F – Ground + 6 storeys (occupiable) – Ground to top occupied floor 

19.35m (Building Height – 24.900m) 

6.5 In total, 17 of the 21 Wheelchair homes are located in Blocks D, E and F from 
levels 1 to 6. On this basis, a due diligence exercise was undertaken and 
subsequently, a change instruction was issued to incorporate dedicated 
disabled lifts in blocks D, E and F in compliance with the new regulations. 
Please see Exempt Part in Appendix 2 for additional costs. 

Page 3



 

Proposed change variations- -Window Jacklocs 

6.7 Tilt and turn and side hung windows are currently key lockable throughout the 
scheme. There are no integral restrictors designed into the windows. The 
restrictor is the key operation that enables the user to open the window fully. 
The windows can only open in the tilt function to a max of 100mm which 
complies with the overheating analysis. To open the window fully a key is 
required.  

 
6.9 The windows were designed so no opening part was less than the 800mm 

above floor level required by the Building Regulations 2010, Part K. Following 
discussions with Building Control in the early stages of the design and 
discussions that made reference to technical guidance, a further guard rail was 
introduced externally at 1100mm high as an additional safety measure. 

 

6.10 However, following discussions with the Council’s safety consultant further 
safety measures were recommended to deal with concerns or risks of furniture 
being placed close to openable windows. In addition, in view of recent incidents 
of child fatalities by falling from windows in tower blocks,  it is recommended 
that additional key operated jacklocs are fitted to windows to further minimise 
risk. 

 

6.11 The detailed costs of this are set out in the Exempt Part in Appendix 2 of this 
report. 

 

Other change variations – management and maintenance 

6.12 Following consultation with the Estates and Neighbourhood Team, a request 
was made for a dedicated space/facility for caretaking the six blocks coming 
into the council’s ownership. Subsequently, a caretakers facility was instructed 
on the 7th floor in Block D. This provides for a bathroom, kitchenette, rest area 
and place to store some cleaning equipment.  

6.13 Further changes were required as the original design included boxing in the 
pipework behind WCs in bathrooms. In order to access pipework behind the 
boxing for maintenance purposes, an access hatch was instructed to be 
incorporated.  

 

Original Purchase Price and additional cost of variations 

6.14 Agreed Limit The Agreed Limit in the Development Agreement is, as set out in 
the Exempt Appendix 2 for the purchase of the six residential blocks being 191 
homes Hale Wharf Phase 2.  

6.15 Table 1 provides a breakdown of costs against the above variations as set out 
in the Exempt Part, Appendix 2 of this report.  

 

Page 4



6.16 It should be noted any overspend is a consequence of the introduction of 
additional Health and Safety measures that, whilst not compulsory, as the 
Scheme was approved prior to the new Regulations coming in to force, is 
nonetheless an important addition to the project. 

 
 

7 Contribution to the Corporate Delivery Plan 2022-2024 High level Strategic 
outcomes 

 

7.1 The acquisition will help to address the Corporate Delivery  Plan priorities of: 

7.1.1 A place with strong, resilient and connected communities where people 
can lead active and healthy lives in an environment that is safe, clean and 
green; and 

7.1.2 A safe, stable and affordable home for everyone, whatever their 
circumstances. 

7.2  The new homes at Hale Wharf will be compliant and make resident safety the 
Council’s number one priority by ensuring the Council is compliant with all 
legislative and statutory standards, including but not only the Fire Safety Act 
2021, the Building Safety Act 2022, and new Social Housing Regulator 
Standards, to ensure that our homes and estates are safe for our residents. 

 
8 Carbon and Climate Change 

The energy for the scheme and all the homes within it is connected to the 
Decentralised Energy Network  

 
 

9 Statutory Officers comments (Director of Finance (procurement), Head of 
Legal and Governance, Equalities) 

 
9.1 Finance  

The additional cost to make the scheme compliant with the recent building 
regulations and safety legislation will be incorporated within the HRA capital 
financing plan for financial 2024/25. 
 
Further finance comments are contained in Appendix 2 of this report. 
 

9.2 Procurement 

Strategic Procurement note the contents of this report and confirm there are no 
procurement related matters preventing Cabinet approving the 
Recommendations stated in paragraph 3 above. 

 

9.3 Head of Legal & Governance [Name and title of Officer completing these 
comments] 

 
 The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer has 

been consulted on the content of this report. 

Page 5



 
The recommendations in to his report seeks an increase in the Agreed Limit 
(being the sum to be paid to the Developer) and the Total Scheme Costs for 
the six blocks that the Council is purchasing. The authority for authorising the 
increase in spending lies with Cabinet and the Cabinet Member can make the 
decision set out in the recommendations. The spend requested must be within 
the Budgetary Framework approved by full Council. 
 

9.4  Equalities 

 

9.4.1 An Equality Impact Assessment Statement has been commissioned and is 
attached in Appendix 3.  

9.4.2 The Council has a Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act (2010) to 
have due regard to the need to: 

8.2.1 Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other 
conduct prohibited under the Act. 

9.4.3 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share those protected 
characteristics and people who do not. 

8.2.3 Foster good relations between people who share those characteristics 
and people who do not.  

9.4.5 The three parts of the duty applies to the following protected characteristics: 
age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy/maternity, race, religion/faith, 
sex and sexual orientation. Marriage and civil partnership status apply to the 
first part of the duty. 

9.4.6 The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the acquisition of 177 
residential units contained within the S106 agreement for Hale Wharf Phase 2 
to use for council rent accommodation.  

9.4.7 The objective of the decision is to increase the supply of Council housing in 
Haringey. The groups that the decision is most likely to directly affect are 
Haringey residents living in temporary accommodation and Haringey residents 
who are at risk of homelessness. Data held by the Council suggests that 
women, young people and BAME communities are over-represented among 
those living in temporary accommodation. Individuals with these protected 
characteristics as well as those who identify as LGBT+ and individuals with 
disabilities are also known to be vulnerable to homelessness, as detailed in the 
Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) of the Council’s Draft Homelessness 
Strategy. As such, it is reasonable to anticipate a positive impact on residents 
with these protected characteristics.  

9.4.8 The salient elements from the EqIA are (1) it demonstrates the proposal is 
robust and there is no potential for discrimination or adverse impacts, (2) no 
actions are required by the Council to remove or mitigate any actual or potential 
negative impact of this acquisition and (3) the Council considers there will not 
be any negative impacts associated with this proposed acquisition. 

 
 

Page 6



10 Use of Appendices 
 
 

11 Background papers  
 

 
 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is exempt

Page 9 Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Hale Wharf Development
	7 EXEMPT - Hale Wharf Development

